
[Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft LLP Letterhead]

March 31, 2016

VIA EDGAR TRANSMISSION

David L. Orlic
Special Counsel
Office of Mergers and Acquisitions
United States Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, D.C. 20549

Dear Mr. Orlic:

We are writing on behalf of Ashford Hospitality Prime, Inc. (“Ashford Prime” or the “Company”), in response to the comment of the 
staff (the “Staff”) of the Office of Mergers and Acquisitions of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) set forth in the 
letter dated March 18, 2016 (the “Comment Letter”), concerning the above referenced soliciting material filed with the Commission on February
25, 2016 (the “Filing”).

The comment of the Staff is set forth below, followed by the corresponding response. For ease of reference the heading and numbered
paragraph below corresponds to the heading and numbered comment in the Comment Letter.

General

The Company acknowledges the Staff’s comment.

Re: Ashford Hospitality Prime, Inc.
Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12
Filed February 25, 2016
File No. 001-35972

1. We refer to the response to prior comment 2. Without commenting on the legal theories presented, we note that the response provides no
factual foundation for the statement regarding “potential violations of insider trading laws.” Please provide factual support for the 
following: that Sessa had nonpublic plans and proposals relating to the company; that a purchase of company stock was made while in
possession of information relating to those plans and proposals; and that Sessa did not authorize that purchase. If factual support is not
available, please refrain from making this statement. See Note A to Rule 14a-9 of Regulation 14A.



Based on the limited and incomplete information we have received from Mr. Livingston, the Company believes it is clear that Mr.
Livingston discussed material nonpublic information with Sessa prior to his purchase of shares of the Company’s common stock, which purchase 
was purportedly made on January 19, 2016 based on the information provided in Sessa’s Definitive Proxy Statement. In response to Question 20
(e) of his D&O Questionnaire (a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A) asking if he had had discussions with Sessa regarding Sessa’s plans or 
proposals for the Company, Mr. Livingston answered “Yes” and stated that he had “discussed some of these matters with John Petry of Sessa 
Capital.” Despite repeated requests, Mr. Livingston has never provided any clarification of his affirmative answer.

The Company has subsequently learned of several of Sessa’s plans and intentions with respect to the Company, almost all of which were
first publicly disclosed after Mr. Livingston’s purchase. Among other things, these include the following: (i) reexamine all related party contracts,
including the Company’s advisory agreement; (ii) explore all options to invalidate or renegotiate the termination fee payable by the Company
under its advisory agreement; (iii) propose that the Company’s CEO no longer also serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors; (iv) limit the
growth of AHP by avoiding certain equity issuances and property acquisitions; (v) increase AHP’s net asset value per share; (vi) return capital to 
AHP stockholders; (vii) cause the Company to adopt a new target leverage strategy; (viii) redeem the Company’s investment in an outside hedge 
fund; (ix) consider strategic acquisitions or dispositions for the Company; (x) maintain the day-to-day management of Ashford Prime; and (xi) 
potentially cause the Company to retain new bankers in connection with the ongoing strategic review process. Since Sessa had publicly disclosed
virtually no plans or intentions for the Company as of Mr. Livingston’s purchase, the Company logically concludes that all or most of these plans 
and intentions must have been what Mr. Livingston referenced in his affirmative D&O Questionnaire answer. A copy of Sessa’s presentation is 
enclosed as Exhibit B.

The Company further believes that Mr. Livingston did not obtain prior authorization from Sessa for the purchase because no such
arrangement was disclosed in his initial D&O Questionnaire and at no time since has Mr. Livingston updated his D&O Questionnaire answers to
disclose this arrangement. The Company notes that Mr. Livingston’s questionnaire was dated January 8, 2016, which was the same day the 
Company provided the D&O Questionnaires to Sessa. The Company finds it hard to believe that Mr. Livingston was able to assemble and
complete all the required information on the same day as he received the D&O Questionnaire but this is what Mr. Livingston has represented to
the Company.  We note that the advance notice provisions of the Company’s Bylaws required Mr. Livingston to notify the Company within two 
days of any changes to any answer in his nomination materials and Mr. Livingston agreed in the D&O Questionnaire to contact the Company
immediately if any event occurs subsequent to the completion of the questionnaire that would require a change to any answer. The advance notice
provisions require nominating stockholders to provide, as to each Proposed Nominee, “all information relating to the Proposed Nominee that 
would be required to be disclosed in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the election of the Proposed Nominee as a director in an
election contest (even if an election contest is not involved), or would otherwise be required in connection with such solicitation, in each case
pursuant to Regulation 14A (or any successor provision) under the Exchange Act.” As you know, Item 5(b)(1)(viii) of Schedule 14A requires the 
disclosure of any “any contract, arrangements or understandings with any person with respect to any securities of the registrant.” Any 
authorization by Sessa of Mr. Livingston’s



purchase would constitute an “arrangement or understanding” with respect to Ashford Prime and, therefore, would have been required to be
disclosed by the parties pursuant to the advance notice provisions. Furthermore, Mr. Livingston would have been required to disclose and update
the details of any conversations or discussions related to Sessa’s authorization as required by the D&O Questionnaire. If Mr. Livingston did
obtain such authorization, then this lack of disclosure is further evidence of Sessa’s non-compliance with the Company’s advance notice 
requirements.

*        *         *

In connection with this response to the Staff’s comment, the Company acknowledged to me and I therefore acknowledge on its behalf
that:

Please do not hesitate to contact me at 212-504-5757 if there are any comments or questions concerning the foregoing or if I can be of
assistance in any way.

the Company is responsible for the adequacy and accuracy of the disclosure in the Filing;

Staff comments or changes to disclosure in response to Staff comments do not foreclose the Commission from taking
any action with respect to the Filing; and

the Company may not assert Staff comments as a defense in any proceeding initiated by the Commission or any person
under the federal securities laws of the United States.

Sincerely,

/s/  Richard M. Brand
Richard M. Brand

cc: David A. Brooks
Chief Operating Officer, General Counsel and Secretary
Ashford Hospitality Prime, Inc.



Exhibit A











***FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16***







































































































***FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16****** MA MB m M *



***FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16******FISMA & OMB Mem ndum M-07-16***



***FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16***



***FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16***



***FISMA & OMB Memorandum M-07-16***



Exhibit B






























































